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Addendum No. 2 to the following Invitation to Negotiate (ITN): 

 
Mobile Communication Services 

 
DMS-19/20-006 

 
Date:  November 16, 2020 
 
To:  Prospective Respondents to ITN No: DMS-19/20-006 
 
From:  Caitlen Boles, Procurement Officer 
 
Subject: Respondent Questions and Department Answers   
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ITN No: DMS-19/20-006, is hereby amended as follows (deletions are shown by strikethrough 
and additions are underlined):  
 
1. ITN No: DMS-19/20-006, Attachment A: Statement of Work, subsection 3.3.1, the third 

sentence, is hereby amended as follows:  
 

For closed user groups, the Contractor must configure both 1) public IP addresses 
owned by the State and Other Eligible Users and 2) private IP addresses furnished by 
the State DMS and Other Eligible Users. 

 
2. ITN No: DMS-19/20-006, Attachment A: Statement of Work, subsection 3.9, paragraph 2, is 

hereby amended as follows: 
 

The Contractor is responsible for on-going testing of the WDS’s transport system (the 
interconnection between MCS and MFN) to ensure proper performance. The Contractor 
is responsible for testing each component, including wireless modems (before and after 
installation, if requested by the Customer), interconnection, interconnection failover, and 
closed user group configurations. The Contractor must demonstrate successful 
interconnection failover for each tunnel between the primary and secondary VPN 
concentrators as part of the Services Infrastructure Checklist signoff and as required by 
DMS. 

 
3. ITN No: DMS-19/20-006, Attachment A: Statement of Work, section 3.12, paragraph 4, is 

hereby amended as follows: 
 

The Contractor must implement internal and external security procedures to guard its 
networks and applications against unauthorized access. The Contractor will provide 
DMS a generalized description copy of the Contractor’s associated security procedures 
upon request.  
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4. ITN No: DMS-19/20-006, Attachment A: Statement of Work, subsection 3.14.3, paragraph 
3, is hereby amended as follows: 
 

The Contractor is required to participate in ESF-2 activities and respond to the needs of 
the State. The Contractor shall deliver the specified quantity (up to 100 of each type 
requested) of activated wireless (WVS and WDS) devices within twenty-four (24) hours 
of receiving the ESF-2 request. The devices will be delivered at Contract costs, with the 
only additional cost being reasonable expedited shipping. The Contractor shall use 
commercially reasonable efforts to deliver devices to any accessible (officially ordered 
safe to enter) location within the Contractor’s service area as directed by ESF-2. 

 
5. ITN No: DMS-19/20-006, Attachment A: Statement of Work, section 3.17.1.e, is hereby 

amended as follows: 
 

e. Maintenance Notifications, SLA B7, B8, B9 (Subsections 3.19.4) 
 
6. ITN No: DMS-19/20-006, Attachment A: Statement of Work, section 3.19.4, is hereby 

deleted in its entirety and replaced as follows: 
 

4.  Notifications. Electronic notifications are required during instances of significant service 
impact, including performance degradation, over a generalized area.  Attachment C, 
SLA-B7.  Electronic notifications are required in advance of maintenance activities 
when the activity may cause a significant service impact, including performance 
degradation, over a generalized area. Notifications must include an impact statement, 
date, time, and estimated duration of the service impact. Attachment C, SLA-B8 and 
SLA-B9.   

 
 

7. ITN No: DMS-19/20-006, Attachment A: Statement of Work, subsection 3.23.1, is hereby 
amended as follows: 

 
1. Provide all reporting activities listed in SOW subsection 3.26.5, Project Management – 

Implementation Plan and Customer Specific Migration Plans 3.27.5(1)(b) and SOW 
subsection 3.27.5(1)(c). 

 
8. ITN No: DMS-19/20-006, Attachment A: Statement of Work, subsection 3.26.3, is hereby 

amended as follows: 
 

The Contractor shall create the following two (2) guides. These guides are deliverables 
subject to final acceptance by DMS. The Contractor shall update the guides when 
necessary as determined by either DMS or the Contractor. Attachment C, SLA-D11. 
 
1. WDS and WVS Operations Guides. The Contractor shall create and maintain one (1) 
WDS and WVS Operations Guides describing the operational relationship between the 
Contractor and DMS. The guides must establish procedures to be followed by the 
Contractor while delivering services. This includes engineering, operational, and 
business processes for service delivery. At a minimum, the guides must include 
ordering, troubleshooting, trouble reporting, service provisioning, SLA monitoring, and 
invoicing processes. 
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2. WDS and WVS User Guides. The Contractor shall provide one (1) WDS and WVS 
User Guides that provide a set of instructions for the End-user. The User Guides must 
also contain device specifications, such as a recommendation of number of 
simultaneous users that each device can support. 

 
9. ITN No: DMS-19/20-006, Attachment A: Statement of Work, subsection 4.5, is hereby 

amended as follows:   
 

DMS Demonstration Devices.  Upon DMS request, in addition to any other test devices 
required by this SOW, the Contractor shall provide up to ten (10) wireless demonstration 
public safety devices equipment (including airtime) for use by the Department for the 
purposes of testing and evaluation at no additional cost. The demonstration equipment 
shall be made available for a minimum period of thirty (30) sixty (60) Business Days. 
Any demonstration equipment, forms, and processes shall be provided, managed, and 
maintained by the Contractor. 
 
Customer Demonstration Devices. The number of demonstration public safety devices 
the Contractor elects to provide to Customers is at the discretion of the Contractor. The 
Contractor will coordinate directly with any other Customer State agencies regarding 
public safety service demonstration equipment, notifying the Department in advance of 
these activities. 
 

10. ITN No: DMS-19/20-006, Attachment A: Statement of Work, subsection 5.8, Work Orders, 
is hereby amended to delete the following: 
 

Attachment C, SLA-G1. 
 

11. ITN No: DMS-19/20-006, Attachment A: Statement of Work, subsection 5.10, Invoicing 
Requirements, is hereby amended as follows: 
 

The Contractor will invoice DMS for all fulfilled orders based on a calendar month with 
invoices and electronic details submitted to DMS. Attachment C, SLA-F1. Invoices to 
DMS will consist of: 1) invoices for payment on an unchangeable format (e.g., paper) 
that reflect the total wholesale charges for the month (referred to herein as a, “handbill”), 
and 2) electronic detail files that substantiate all billable services. The total of 
substantiated detail charges must match the payment requests on each of the handbills. 
All credits due must be reflected on the invoice related to the first available billing cycle 
after the credit has been determined. Attachment C, SLA-F2.  Both the handbill and 
electronic files for the CSAB portion must be received no later than the 10th calendar 
day of each month. 

 
12. ITN No: DMS-19/20-006, Attachment A: Statement of Work, Section 5.12, Audit of 

Contractor Invoices, is hereby amended with the following text added: 
 

DMS will audit invoices to validate all charges against the current inventory of provided 
services and the prices associated with the CSAB Service Catalog. If the electronic 
substantiating detail provided by the Contractor contains some errors but: a) is complete 
(i.e., contains all of the required data elements); b) substantially corresponds with the CSAB 
inventory and CSAB Service Catalog; and c) matches the handbill, then DMS will send an 
audit exception report (B2B-7) to the Contractor detailing any disputed charges. At this time, 
this is a manual process. At any time during the Contract term, this may become an 
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electronic process, at DMS’ sole discretion. DMS staff will request credits/debits for any 
audit exceptions on the current invoice and work with Contractor staff to reconcile charges 
and system data to resolve the exceptions within two (2) one (1) billing cycles from receipt 
of dispute. If Contractor has not resolved audit exceptions within two (2) one (1) billing 
cycles, the charges will be adjusted as determined by DMS. 
 

13. ITN No: DMS-19/20-006, Attachment A: Statement of Work, Section 6.6, Customers Liability  
is hereby amended with the following text added: 

 
No response required. By submitting a Reply, Respondent has read, understands, and 
will comply with the statements contained in this section. 

 
 
 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
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14. ITN No: DMS-19/20-006, Attachment C: Service Level Agreements, SLA-B7, SLA-G2, and SLA-G3 are hereby amended as 
follows: 

 
Service 

Category 
SLA 

Number 
Deliverable Title Performance Metric Financial 

Consequence  
 

All calendar 
days, unless 

otherwise 
stated 

Additional SLA Clock Information 

Services and 
Devices  
for Mobile 
Communication 
Services  
 

SLA-B7 Notif ication, 
Signif icant 
Service Impact 
Planned 
Maintenance 

Notif ication of  significant service impact 
received one (1) hour af ter beginning of  
impact, in accordance with SOW 
subsection 3.19.4 and section 4. 
received two (2) Business Days prior to 
any planned maintenance, in 
accordance with SOW subsection 
3.20.4 and section 4  

$2,500 per 
failure to notify  

The SLA is measured by the Contractor’s 
logs and emails. 
 
The SLA applies automatically one (1) 
hour af ter the determination of  signif icant 
service impact. two (2) Business Days 
prior to any planned maintenance for 
which notice is not provided. 
  

Direct Ordering 
and Billing 

SLA-G2 Direct-Billed 
Accounts Monthly 
Report 

A Direct-Billed Accounts Monthly 
Report will be provided no later than the 
30th 15th of  the month on all direct-
billed accounts, in accordance with 
SOW subsection 6.4 

$1,000 per day  
 

Direct Ordering 
and Billing 

SLA-G3 Direct-Billed 
Accounts 
Quarterly Report 

A Direct-Billed Accounts Quarterly 
Report will be provided no later than the 
30th 15th of  the month on all direct-
billed accounts, in accordance with 
SOW subsection 6.5 

$1,000 per day  
 

 
 
 
Enclosure:  
Questions and Answers  
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FAILURE TO FILE A PROTEST WITHIN THE TIME PRESCRIBED IN SECTION 120.57(3), FLORIDA STATUTES, OR FAILURE 
TO POST THE BOND OR OTHER SECURITY REQUIRED BY LAW WITHIN THE TIME ALLOWED FOR FILING A BOND SHALL 
CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF PROCEEDINGS UNDER CHAPTER 120, FLORIDA STATUTES. 
 
Any protest concerning this agency decision or intended decision must be timely filed with the Agency Clerk. Protests may be filed by 
courier, hand delivery, or U.S. mail at Department of Management Services, Office of the General Counsel, Attention: Agency Clerk, 
4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0950. Protests may also be filed by fax to 850-922-6312, or by email to 
agencyclerk@dms.fl.gov. It is the filing party’s responsibility to meet all filing deadlines.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:agencyclerk@dms.fl.gov
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Invitation to Negotiate 
Mobile Communication Services 

ITN No. DMS-19/20-006 
Questions and Answers  

 
The Department’s answers to timely submitted questions are below.  
 

Question 
Number Section Page 

Number Question Answer 

1 ITN, 3.6.1 12 

We are in the telecommunications business and  
have the ability to provide cellular voice, data and 
sms services as required by this ITN.  
 
Section 3.6.1 requires minimum compliance with 
“Consolidated Communications Marketplace 
Report – 2018, paragraph 6, page 4, and  
paragraph 44, page 37, is presumed to meet this 
coverage requirement.” 
 
This renders this ITN open to only AT&T, T-
Mobile and Verizon. 
 
Am I reading this correctly? 

No.  Please see the entirety of  ITN Section 3.6.1,  
including:  
 
“A Respondent not listed in the above-mentioned   
FCC   report   as   a   nationwide   service   provider   
must   submit   documentation showing that it has 
been independently verif ied by a government entity 
as meeting these coverage requirements.”  

2 N/A N/A 

Would it be possible to supply the SOW and 
required forms in Microsof t Word format for 
recently released ITN # DMS-19/20-006? 
 

Vendors may contact the Procurement Of f icer in 
writing via email to request Attachment A, Statement  
of  Work (SOW), in Microsof t Word format. Only the 
SOW will be provided in Microsof t Word format. 

3 N/A N/A Would the State please provide a word version of  
each ITN document? Please see Answer No. 2. 

4 ITN, 1.3 4 
When will the new agreement commence – May 
2021 or af ter expiration of  existing agreement?   

The anticipated contract execution date is May 2021 
to allow time for migration to new Contract(s), if  
awarded. 

5 ITN, 1.3 4 Will the agreements run concurrently? Yes. The Department expects any Contracts 
entered into as a result of  this ITN to be concurrent.  

6 ITN, 1.8 5 
Will the State please consider extending the f inal 
deadline one month due to the complexity of  the 
RFP? 

No. 
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Question 
Number Section Page 

Number Question Answer 

7 ITN, 1.8 6 

Will the State provide answers to Respondents 
questions as available (before 11/9)?  
Respondents would like answers ASAP to 
conf irm about ability to support requirements.   

These answers to Respondent’s timely submitted 
questions are being posted in accordance with 
Section 1.8, Timeline of  Events, of  the ITN. 

8 Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work N/A 

For requirements that do not allow comment, 
how should Respondents provide clarif ications 
regarding our ability to support the request? 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations. 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 

9 
Attachment A – 

Statement of  Work: 
4.4 & 4.8 

54-55 

Requirement 4.4 only references 3GPP and  
does not synch with 4.8 NPSTC standards.  Does 
the State require Respondents to certify NPSTC 
compliance prior to (or during) the proposal 
stage? 

Subsection 4.4 requires public safety service plans 
and devices to adhere to the 3GPP standard. 
Subsection 4.8 requires the Contractor to 
demonstrate that a PTT device or service adheres  
to the NPSTC standard before it can be advertised 
or marketed as ‘mission critical.’  
  
Respondents are not required to certify NPSTC 
compliance in their Replies.  

10 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work 
& Attachment C – 

Service Level 
Agreements 

SLA-F2 

Please conf irm which requirement SLA-F2 
applies.   SLA-F2 applies to SOW subsection 5.10.   

 
Please see Section 11 of  Addendum No. 2.  

11 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work 
& Attachment C – 

Service Level 
Agreements 

SLA-G1 

Please conf irm SLA-G1 applies to 6.2 (not 5.8).   
Conf irmed, SLA-G1 applies to SOW subsection 6.2.   
 
Please see Section 10 of  Addendum No. 2. 

12 
Attachment A – 

Statement of  Work: 
5.8 

60 
Does 5.8 Work Orders have an associated SLA?  
If  yes, please conf irm SLA#. No. 

13 ITN, 3.6.1 12 

The State of  Florida’s minimum qualif ication 
requirement for 3.6.1, for being a facilities-based 
mobile wireless service provider with a network  
that covers at least 90% of  the nation’s non-rural 
population, signif icantly limits competition. Many 
potential bidders, who have proven their ability to 

Section 3.6.1 will remain the same.  
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Question 
Number Section Page 

Number Question Answer 

add value to large enterprise and Government  
customers, do not have the proper FCC 
certif ications. We are a facilities based network 
provider with POPs all over the country and 
we have relationships with all major wireless 
providers which gives us carrier-agnostic 
wireless coverage of well over 90% of the 
nation's non-rural population. We believe 
there are additional companies that can add 
signif icant value that may not have proof  of  the 
volume of  coverage. Can the State of  Florida 
revise this requirements to be less restrictive to 
encourage more competition? 
 

14 N/A N/A 

Would D.M.S. accept responses f rom a Mobile 
Virtual Network Operator (MVNOs) if  it creates  
more competition amongst all of the respondents 
and ultimately better competitively priced 
services for SUNCOM customers? 
 

Mobile Virtual Network Operators (MVNOs) are not 
precluded f rom submitting a Reply. 
 
The Department interprets facilities-based mobile 
wireless service providers for the purpose of  this 
procurement to include vendors that provide the 
services using their own network facilities and  
spectrum for which it holds a license, manages, or 
for which it has obtained the right to use via a 
spectrum leasing arrangement.  

15 
Attachment A – 

Statement of  Work: 
1.1.5 & 4.2 

 

Under sections 1.1.5 and 4.2 which center 
around public safety. Would D.M.S. disqualify 
vendors who don’t have access to Firstnet and 
other Wireless Priority Access on smartphones 
or is this an optional subsection that would only 
apply to Suncom customers in the area of  Public 
Safety?   
 

No.  Section 4.2 is optional.  Providing public safety 
specif ic devices, as referenced in section 1.1.5, is 
optional.  

16 3.18 35 What is the maximum SLA penalty that can be 
applied in any given month? Maximum CAP? 

There is no cap on the amount of  SLAs that may be 
applied in a given month. 

17 3.18.5 36 What will serve as validation for the contractor 
that this report was received on time by DMS? 

The Contract does not specify how receipt of  this 
report will be acknowledged.  However, as stated in 
Section 4.4.1, Negotiations Process – General 
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Question 
Number Section Page 

Number Question Answer 

Overview, “[t]he Department reserves the right to 
negotiate dif ferent terms, additional terms, and 
related price adjustments if  the Department  
determines that such changes would provide the 
best value to the State. Additional operational 
requirements may be def ined and clarif ications 
required. 

18 3.19.1 37 What will serve as validation for the contractor 
that this report was received on time by DMS? 

The Contract does not specify how receipt of  this 
report will be acknowledged.  However, as stated in 
Section 4.4.1, Negotiations Process – General 
Overview, “[t]he Department reserves the right to 
negotiate dif ferent terms, additional terms, and 
related price adjustments if  the Department  
determines that such changes would provide the 
best value to the State. Additional operational 
requirements may be def ined and clarif ications 
required. 

19 3.19.4 37 What will serve as validation for the contractor 
that this message was received on time by DMS? 

The Contract does not specify how receipt of  this 
report will be acknowledged.  However, as stated in 
Section 4.4.1, Negotiations Process – General 
Overview, “[t]he Department reserves the right to 
negotiate dif ferent terms, additional terms, and 
related price adjustments if  the Department  
determines that such changes would provide the 
best value to the State. Additional operational 
requirements may be def ined and clarif ications 
required. 

20 3.19.4 37 How will discrepancies between Contractors time 
stamping and DMS time stamping be resolved? 

The Contract does not specify how receipt of  this 
report will be acknowledged.  However, as stated in 
Section 4.4.1, Negotiations Process – General 
Overview, “[t]he Department reserves the right to 
negotiate dif ferent terms, additional terms, and 
related price adjustments if  the Department  
determines that such changes would provide the 
best value to the State. Additional operational 
requirements may be def ined and clarif ications 
required. 
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Question 
Number Section Page 

Number Question Answer 

21 2 4 

In ATTACHMENT B - DRAFT CONTRACT, the 
“Contract and Documents Hierarchy”is not 
consistent with the actual ITN Attachments A 
through E.  For example, Section 2 (1-7) 
identif ies Attachment A as “Def initions and  
Acronyms” whereas, it is Attachment E in the ITN 
Attachments.  It also refers to Attachment C as 
“Contractor’s Pricing” with three Exhibits 
whereas Attachment C is “Service Level 
Agreements” in the ITN documents.  Please 
provide further clarif ication. 

Section 2, Contract Documents and Hierarchy, of  
the Draf t Contract specif ies the order of  precedence 
for the resulting Contract(s), if  any.  The documents 
are not intended to match the ITN attachments and  
are updated prior to Contract execution to follow the 
typical naming convention (e.g., A, B, C, etc.). 

22 6.6 65 
The document indicates that there are 66 total 
pages but there are only 65 pages provided in 
Attachment A. Is there a missing page? 

This is a clerical error and Attachment A: Statement  
of  Work should read 65 pages.  

23 6.6 65 

There are no instructions at the end of  Section 6 
“Direct Ordering and Billing”.  Did The State 
intend to include specif ic instructions or a “Read, 
understands, and will comply” statement at the 
end of  the section? 

Please see Section 13 of  Addendum No. 2.   

24 1.8 6 

In ITN Document, under the "Timeline of  Events", 
the respondent requests a two month extension 
to January 29, 2021 based on holiday staf fing 
issues.  

No. 

25 4.5 54 
What is the limit on the number of  device demos 
required? Currently, the Vendor is contracted for 
up to 10 demo devices.  

Please see Section 9 of  Addendum No. 2. 
 
 

26 4.8 55 

Does the statement; “Mission critical push-to-talk 
(PTT)  devices and services shall not be 
advertised or marketed to State public safety 
entities as “mission critical”, as def ined by the 
National Public Safety Telecommunications 
Council (NPSTC), until demonstrated to the 
Department that the contractor’s PTT is in 
compliance with NPSTC’s requirements, and  
approved in writing by, the Department.”  include 
the statements 3GPP MCPTT compliant? 

3GPP MCPTT compliance is not required for 
NPSTC compliance, but the Department reserves 
the right to discuss additional compliance 
requirements during negotiations in accordance 
with ITN section 4.4, Negotiations.  
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Question 
Number Section Page 

Number Question Answer 

27 4.8 55 Does the reference to "the Department" refer to 
NPSTC or State of  Florida DMS? State of  Florida, DMS 

28 4.8 55 

Please conf irm that is the correct use for 
compliance testing.  
https://www.npstc.org/documents/Functional%2
0Description%20MCV%20v5.doc 
 - Included In Question Attachment 1 - Question 
Attachment 1 - Mission Critical Voice 
Communications 

Conf irmed.  

29 ITN, 1.8 5 
Will the State please consider extending the 
deadline for questions two weeks due to the 
complexity of  the RFP? 

No. 

30 ITN, 1.8 5 
Will Respondents be able to ask follow-up 
questions on the complete Respondent answers  
scheduled to be release on 11/9? 

 
No. Respondents invited to participate in 
negotiations will be permitted to ask additional 
questions during the negotiations phase.  
 
 

 
 

31 

 
Attachment A – 

Statement of  Work, 
2 
 

 
 

13-16 

Will the State agree to add “or equivalent  
experience” to each Key Staf f  Position 
descriptions as follows:   

The (POSITION) shall possess the following 
minimum qualif ications, or equivalent  
experience:  

2.2 Key Staf f  Position - Account Manager 

2.3 Key Staf f  Position - Project Manager 
2.4 Key Staf f  Position - Business Operations 
Manager 
2.5 Key Staf f  Position - Engineering and Design 
Manager 

2.6 Key Staf f  Position - Operations and Security 
Manager 

 
 
 
See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
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Question 
Number Section Page 

Number Question Answer 

 
32 

 
Attachment A – 

Statement of  Work, 
2 
 

 
 

13 

Will the State agree to modify the language “The 
(POSITION) or designated backup(s) must be 
available twenty-four (24) hours a day, 365 days 
of  the year” to state the following: “24x7x365 
support will be available through a Care team.”  

Key staf f  may not be available 24/7/365 but 
Contract will provide this level of  support through 
its Care team. 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 
33 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

2.3 
 

 
14 

Will the State agree to remove minimum 
qualif ication #5 f rom Section 2.3 Key Staff  
Position - Project Manager?  While the 
Respondent will agree to meet all other 
qualif ications for this Key Staf f  Position, it is 
respectfully requested that the certif ication 
requirement be removed to allow more f lexibility 
in staf f ing. 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 
34 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.3 

 
18 

Please conf irm the CSAB portal services are only 
available to State agencies on one centralized  
DMS account? 

The CSAB portal and its functionality is available to 
all Customers; both State agencies and OEUs. 

35 Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.3 

18 Will the State agree to modify this sentence in 
Section 3.3 to delete the phrase “owned by the 
State and Other Eligible Users” and replace the 
language with “public IP address owned by 
Contractor”? 
The revised language would read as follows: 
“The Contractor must conf igure both 1) public IP 
addresses owned by Contractor the State and  
Other Eligible Users and 2) private IP addresses 
furnished by DMS and Other Eligible Users. 

Please see Section 1 of  Addendum No. 2. 
 
 

 
36 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.4 

 
19 

Please conf irm OEU’s are not permitted to order 
and bill through their own instance in the CSAB 
portal.   

The CSAB portal and its functionality is available to 
all Customers; both State agencies and OEUs. 
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Question 
Number Section Page 

Number Question Answer 

 
37 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.5 

 
20 

What are the Direct-Billed OEU’s permitted to do 
and/or order within the State CSAB? 

OEU’s are not restricted f rom ordering f rom the 
CSAB portal, its functionality is available to all  
Customers. This can be further discussed in 
negotiations.  

 
38 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.6 

 
24 
 

Please conf irm the State will continue to own and  
maintain all of  the MFN equipment and circuitry.   

Conf irmed. 

 
39 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.6 

 
24 
 

Please conf irm the Respondent will maintain 
equipment and capacity on the Respondent side. 

Please see subsection 3.6 (page 21).  “In each 
network-to-network interface location the Contractor 
must provide equipment and a corresponding 
design that will function as an IPsec Virtual Private 
Network (VPN) concentrator.” 
 
Please see subsection 3.15 (page 33). “The 
Contractor is f inancially responsible for its 
connection to MFN, including, but not limited to, the 
network-to-network interface, VPN concentrators, 
circuits, inf rastructure components, bandwidth 
upgrades, equipment, and sof tware.” 
 
See also Figure 4, IPsec VPN Interconnection into 
MyFloridaNet on page 22 of  the SOW; the 
Contractor is f inancially responsible for its interface 
to the internet. 

 
40 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.9 

 
28 

Will the State agree to modify the following 
portion of  this requirement: “including wireless 
modems (before and af ter installation, if  
requested by the Customer)”?   
The Respondent will assist with the deployment 
and ongoing deployment / kitting support for bulk 
orders of  (50) or more.  Basic power on / 
connectivity testing including a QA process 
sampling for application load is performed for 
bulk orders by our kitting and staging partners.   
The State will have support available to 

Please see Section 2 of  Addendum No. 2. 
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troubleshoot issues related to connectivity, CUG, 
Failover, etc.   

 
41 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.12 

 
29 
 

The Respondent respectfully requests the 
following be removed f rom this requirement: “The 
Contractor will provide DMS a copy of  the 
Contractor’s associated security procedures 
upon request.”  Respondent security procedures 
are considered proprietary.  Respondent will 
communicate details where necessary. 

Please see Section 3 of  Addendum No. 2. 

 
42 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.14.3 

 
32 
 

Is this requirement per agency and per event? Per event, not per agency.  
 
Please see Section 4 of  Addendum No. 2. 
 
 

 
43 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.14.3 

 
32 
 

Does the State intend to keep or return devices 
to the Respondent af ter the emergency event? 

Return. 

 
44 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.15 

 
33 
 

Please conf irm the State will be f inancially 
responsible for the MFN equipment and circuitry 
including VPN concentrators, circuits, and  
inf rastructure components. 

Please see subsection 3.15 (page 33). “The 
Contractor is f inancially responsible for its 
connection to MFN, including, but not limited to, the 
network-to-network interface, VPN concentrators, 
circuits, inf rastructure components, bandwidth 
upgrades, equipment, and sof tware.” 
 
See also Figure 4, IPsec VPN Interconnection into 
MyFloridaNet on page 22 of  the SOW; the 
Contractor is f inancially responsible for its interface 
to the internet. 

 
45 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.17 

 
34 

Please further describe what statistics on 
products/services f rom a high level to a detailed 
level the State is looking for Respondents to 
provide. 

The Department will provide additional information 
at the time of  request when the items specif ied in 
section 3.17.2 are requested f rom the Contractor.  

 
46 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.17 

 
34 
 

What information does the State wish to receive 
regarding device trends? 

Please see Answer No. 45. 
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47 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.19 

 
37 
 

Please conf irm the DMS will funnel escalations 
f rom agencies and OEU to the Respondent as 
opposed to individual agencies and OEU 
escalating directly to the Respondent.   

OEUs, State agencies, and DMS may contact the 
Contractor(s) directly. 

 
48 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.19 

 
37 
 

If  there is a customer impacting outage as a 
result of  any planned maintenance, those 
notif ications will be provided by Respondent 
under the unplanned maintenance notif ication 
process.  Will the State agree to modify SOW 
subsection 3.19 to modify (4) with the following 
revised language? 
Notif ications. Notif ications must be for provided 
for planned, emergency, and unplanned  
maintenance. The Contractor shall send an 
electronic notif ication which informs DMS of  1) a 
planned maintenance which may potentially 
cause a service outage; 2) emergency 
maintenance when it may cause a service outage 
and when there is an outage impacting a 
generalized area; and 2) unplanned  
maintenance for signif icant unplanned  
maintenance  and when there is a signif icant 
performance impact over a generalized area.  
The notif ication must include an impact 
statement, date, time, and estimated duration of  
the maintenance. Attachment C, SLA-B7, B8,  
and B9. 

 
 
Please see Section 6 of  Addendum No. 2. 

 
49 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.23 

 
41 
 

SOW subsection 3.23(1) states that the Contract  
shall “Provide all reporting activities listed in 
SOW subsection 3.27.5(1)(b) and SOW 
subsection 3.27.5(1)(c).”  Can the State please 
conf irm that the citations to subsection 
3.27.5(1)(b) and 3.27.5(1)(c) are the correct 
subsections?  There does not appear to be 
subsections with these numbers in the SOW. 

Please see Section 7 of  Addendum No. 2.  
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50 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.23 (7) 

 
41 
 

Will the State agree to revise SOW Subsection 
3.23(7)(c) to revise the statement “Migration 
does not include new Customers or Customers  
changing their services af ter migration” to state, 
“Migration does not include new Customers, or 
Customers changing their services af ter 
migration, or non-State agencies that opt to 
purchase under a dif ferent contract 
vehicle.”  Non-State agencies and are not 
required to use this Contract and Contractors, 
both incumbent and non-incumbent, should not 
be required to migrate those Customers to this 
new Contract if  the non-State agency opts to 
utilize a dif ferent contract vehicle. 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations. 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 
51 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.26.2 

 
47 
 

Respondent respectfully requests the following 
be removed f rom this requirement: “costs and  
calculated earned value metrics Cost 
Performance Index (CPI) and Schedule 
Performance Index (SPI),”.  
This portion of  the requirement is not applicable 
to a f ixed-priced wireless contract.   

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 
52 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.26.2 

 
47 
 

Respondent requests that the State clarify that  
the Contractors have up to 18 months to 
complete the Project Implementation Phase. 

Contract Nos. DMS-10/11-008A – C expire January  
19, 2022.  The Contract(s), if  any, resulting f rom this 
ITN are anticipated to be executed in May 2021.   
This leaves eight (8) months for implementation.  
The timeframe for each awarded Contractor’s 
implementation will be agreed upon in the 
Implementation and Migration Plan. 

 
53 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.26.3 

 
48 
 

Please clarify the State’s expectations for the 
Operations Guide.  What type of  topics and  
information would the State like included in the 
Guide? 

During the Implementation Phase, some details 
related to “engineering, operational, and business 
processes” will need to be agreed upon between the 
Department and the Contractor(s). Once those 
standard operating procedures are written, they are 
to be collected and published as the Operations 
Guide.   “At a minimum, the guide must include 
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ordering, troubleshooting, trouble reporting, service 
provisioning, SLA monitoring, and invoicing 
processes.”  
 
A specif ic example of  a topic to be included in the 
guide will be the answer to the question, “How 
should the Contractor notify the State when a device 
is not available at the point of  order?” 
 
See also Section 8 of  Addendum No. 2. 

 
54 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

3.26.5 (c) 

 
49 
 

Please def ine ‘non-incumbent’. Non-incumbent Contractors would be any vendors 
the Department contracts with as a result of  this ITN 
that do not currently have an MCS Contract with the 
Department. 

 
55 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

4 

 
53 

Specif ic to 4. Public Safety Service Plans and 
Devices, are Respondents permitted to not bid 
on this section of  the ITN? 

Yes. 

 
56 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

4 

 
53 
 

Should the Respondent be unable to meet all  
Public Safety specif ications as written, will there 
be an opportunity for Respondent to add 
specif ied services af ter award should those 
specif ications be met? 

Contract terms may be negotiated in accordance 
with ITN Section 4.4, Negotiations; however,  
Contract terms can only be changed af ter Contract 
execution via amendment, in accordance Section 
19.10, Modif ication and Severability, of  Attachment 
B, Draf t Contract.  

 
57 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

4 

 
53 
 

Should the Respondent be unable to meet all  
Public Safety specif ications as written, would 
DMS allow Respondent’s Public Safety solutions 
onto the contract to allow local entities to 
purchase such using the FL MCS contract, if  they 
so deemed these solutions meet their needs? 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 
58 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

4 

 
53 
 

Should the Respondent need development time 
to meet the Public Safety specif ications as 
written, could the Respondent be allowed a 12 
month time period af ter award to meet such 
expectations, knowing no sales would occur until 
the specif ications are met? 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current terms 
apply. 
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59 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

4 

 
53 
 

Should the Respondent meet several of  the 
Public Safety specif ications and provide 
signif icant advantages in price or other 
capabilities, will it still be considered as an option 
for the State? 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract  
terms apply. 

 
60 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

4.5 

 
54 
 

What aspects of  the Public Safety of fer is the 
State looking to be demonstrated? 

Test devices required by section 4.5 (wireless 
demonstration equipment) could be any device the 
awarded Contractor(s) are proposing for addition in 
their catalogs as a public safety device.  

 
61 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

4.7 

 
55 
 

The Respondent requests the State strike 
‘device type’ f rom this requirement.  Responder 
does not always have access to this data, such 
as in a BYOD scenario. 

The Contractor will not be required to provide 
information that is not available. 

 
62 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

5.3 

 
58 
 

Please conf irm the State’s def inition of  inventory 
for this requirement (services or equipment)? 

Inventory is described in subsection 5.9, Inventory. 

 
63 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

5.9 

 
58 
 

How should the Respondent notify the State 
when a device is not available at the point of  
order?    

This level of  detail related to this business process 
will be developed during the implementation 
process.  

 
64 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

5.5 

 
59 
 

Please provide a sample CSAB Service Catalog. The requested information can be found on the 
Contractor’s EUPLs, which are uploaded into the 
CSAB Service Catalog.  The Department’s current  
EUPLs can be accessed at: 
https://www.dms.myf lorida.com/business_operatio
ns/telecommunications/suncom2/voice_services/m
obile_communication_services   
 
 

 
65 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

5.6 

 
59 
 

Will the State please conf irm the 0.7% 
transaction fee that all vendors must collect for 
sales made on the MyFloridaMarketPlace 
(MFMP) online procurement system is not 
subject to the rules/requirements in section 5.6? 

Conf irm. 

https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/telecommunications/suncom2/voice_services/mobile_communication_services
https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/telecommunications/suncom2/voice_services/mobile_communication_services
https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/telecommunications/suncom2/voice_services/mobile_communication_services
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66 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

5.9 

 
6.1 

 

Please conf irm the State wants a view into only 
the active inventory on CSAB for the DMS 
account, as opposed to Contractor’s available 
device inventory. 

The State is not requiring a view into the 
Contractor’s available device inventory. 

 
67 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

5.10 

 
61 
 

Is the State willing to agree to remove the phrase 
“based on a calendar month” f rom this 
requirement?  The Respondents bill-cycles don’t 
align with the calendar month. 

A full month cycle of  service is needed. Bill cycle 
does not have to begin on the 1st of  each month and 
end on the 30th. 

 
68 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

5.10 

 
61 
 

Is the State willing to agree to modify the 
timeframe for the following sentence “for 
electronic f iles for the CSAB portion must be 
received no later than the 10th calendar day of  
each month” to “15 business days” f rom this 
requirement?  The Respondents billing process 
requires the additional time to complete our 
internal steps. 

Ten (10) calendar days af ter the bill cycle completes 
for DMS CSAB accounts; however, if  billed directly 
to Customer, no billing detail is needed for DMS. 

 
69 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

5.11 

 
61 
 

Is this Substantiating Detail File specif ic to the 
CSAB bill f ile or required for all accounts 
purchasing under the contract? 

The invoice substantiation f ile is specif ic to CSAB 
individual bills required under the Contract. 

 
70 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

5.11 

 
61 
 

Please provide def inition for unique ID? CSAB inventory number. 

 
71 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

5.12 

 
62 
 

The Respondent respectfully asks for the 
following modification to this requirement: 
“DMS staf f  will request credits/debits for any 
audit exceptions on the current invoice and work 
with Contractor staf f  to reconcile charges and 
system data to resolve the exceptions within two 
(2) one (1) billing cycle f rom receipt of  dispute or 
the Contractor will advise the DMS staf f  if  
additional time is required. If  Contractor has not 
resolved audit exceptions within one (1) billing 
cycle, the charges will be adjusted as determined  
by DMS.” 

Two bill cycle – If  Contractor has not resolved audit 
exceptions within two (2) billing cycles, the charges 
will be adjusted as determined by DMS. 
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72 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

5.16 

 
62 
 

Is the State willing to agree to remove the phrase 
“based on a calendar month” f rom this 
requirement?  The respondent bill-cycles don’t 
align with the calendar month. 

Please see Answer No. 67. 

 
73 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

6 

 
63 
 

In regards to “By acceptance of  an MFMP 
purchase order” does this refer to standard 
punch-out CXML PO specif ication? 

MFMP purchase order routing is typically discussed 
once the Department and Contractor begin testing 
the MFMP punchout catalog during the 
Implementation Phase. The Contractor has two (2) 
options for order routing: email or electronic via the 
Ariba Network. If  the Contractor elects to use email 
order routing, orders will be sent as an attachment 
using HTML format. If  the Contractor elects to use 
electronic order routing, orders will be sent via 
cXML. 

 
74 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

6.3 & 6.4 

 
64 
 

Please def ine “Customer corporate identif ier”. The corporate identif ier is found in reports and  
statements (bills) associated with direct-billed 
accounts. This static entry is created by the 
Contractor. It allows Customers and DMS to 
recognize reports and statements as generated  
under the Contract. 

 
75 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

6.4 

 
64 
 

Can the State please provide a template for this 
report?   

There is no template for the Direct-Billed Monthly 
Report.  It is provided by the Contractor and subject 
to DMS f inal approval. 

 
76 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

6.5 

 
65 
 

Can the State please provide a template for this 
report?   

There is no template for the Direct-Billed Quarterly  
Report. It is provided by the Contractor and subject 
to DMS f inal approval. 

 
77 
 

Attachment A – 
Statement of  Work, 

6.5 

 
65 
 

The Respondent requests the State strike 
‘device type’ f rom the Quarterly Reporting of  
Direct-Billed Accounts. Responder does not 
always have access to this data, such as in a 
BYOD scenario. 

Please see Answer No. 61. 

 
78 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 
Agreements 

 
1 
 

Respondent requests a limitation on f inancial 
penalties be included in Attachment 3, Service 
Level Agreement to limit each individual SLA to 
a cap of  not more than 2% of  monthly revenue 
per SLA, with an aggregate monthly cap across 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
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all SLAs in Attachment 3 of  not more than 5% of  
monthly revenue under the Contract. 

 

 
79 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 
Agreements 

 
1 

Will the State conf irm that one, multiple, or 
recurring violations of  an SLA will not be 
considered a breach of  the Contract? 

Please see Attachment B – Draf t Contract, section 
11.2. “One, multiple, or recurring violations of  a SLA 
may be considered a breach of  the Contract and  
may result in a suspension or cancellation of  PO(s) 
or CSA(s). The Department reserves the right to 
determine when violation(s) of  SLAs constitute a 
breach of  the Contract or will result in a suspension 
or cancellation of  PO(s) or CSA(s). The 
Department’s determination of  a breach of  the 
Contract or suspension or cancellation of  PO(s) or 
CSA(s) will depend on the number and severity of  
the SLA violation(s), disruption to service, 
Contractor’s response, and other factors.” 

 
80 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 
Agreements 

 
1 

Regarding SLA language and penalties, the ITN 
is not allowing any method of  negotiation.  Will 
the State reconsider, or is the only other 
contractor option a no-bid? 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract  
terms apply. 
 

 
81 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 
Agreements 

 
1 

Will SLA penalty amounts be individually 
negotiated with each vendor, or contract 
consistent for all vendors? 

The Department’s intent is to have consistent SLAs 
across all Contracts, if  multiple Contracts are 
awarded.  However, the Department reserves the 
right to negotiate all terms with vendors individually. 
 
See also ITN section 4.4, Negotiations.  
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 
82 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
B1 

 
2 

The Respondent respectfully requests the 
following changes to the f inancial consequence 
for this SLA: 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations. 
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$500 $5,000 per connectivity issue incidence  
$5,000 per quarter hour if  the failover is not 
successful and that results in downtime of  longer 
than 500 second 

However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 
83 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
B3 

 
3 

Respondent respectfully requests reducing the 
f inancial consequence f rom $1000 / day for the 
SLA Compliance Report to $250 / day. 

 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 
84 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
B4 

 
3 

Respondent respectfully requests reducing the 
f inancial consequence f rom $1000 / day for the 
Escalation Activity Report to $250 / day. 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 
85 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
B5 

 
3 
 

Respondent respectfully requests reducing the 
f inancial consequence f rom $1000 / day for the 
Zero Usage Report to $250 / day. 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 
86 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
B6 

 
3 

Respondent respectfully requests reducing the 
f inancial consequence f rom $1000 / day for the 
Escalation Procedure Development and Updates 
to $250 / day. 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 
87 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
B7 

 
3 

If  there is a customer impacting outage as a 
result of  any planned maintenance, those 
notif ications will be provided by Respondent 
under the unplanned maintenance notif ication 
process.  As such, Respondent requests that 
SLA-B7 Notif ication, Planned Maintenance be 
removed in its entirety? 

Please see Section 14 of  Addendum No. 2. 
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88 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
B7 

 
3 

If  SLA-B7 is not removed, Respondent 
respectfully requests reducing the f inancial 
consequence f rom $2500 / day for Planned 
Maintenance to $500 / day. 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 
89 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
B8 

 
4 

Respondent respectfully requests reducing the 
f inancial consequence f rom $2500 / day for 
Emergency Maintenance to $500 / day. 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 
90 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
B9 

 
4 

Respondent respectfully requests reducing the 
f inancial consequence f rom $2500 / day for 
Unplanned Maintenance to $500 / day. 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 

 
91 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
B10 

 
5 

Will the State agree to revise SL-B10 to remove 
the existing Performance Metric and replace it 
with the following: “The SLA clock stops for 
incumbent Contractors when all End-users are 
identif ied as either migrated, or no longer 
receiving services f rom the Contractor, or for 
non-State agencies having selected another 
contract vehicle. The SLA clock stops for non-
incumbent Contractors when all End-users  
identif ied as purchasing services f rom the non-
incumbent Contractor are migrated or for non-
State agencies having selected another contract 
vehicle.” 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 
92 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
D17 

 
8 

Respondent respectfully requests SLA-D17 be 
removed in its entirety because most tasks in the 
checklist have individual SLAs already assigned. 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract  
terms apply. 
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93 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
F1 

 
8 

The Respondent respectfully requests the 
removal of  this SLA due to the ambiguity of  
‘complete and accurate’.  

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 
94 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
F1 

 
8 

Respondent respectfully requests reducing the 
f inancial consequence f rom $1000 / day for 
delayed invoices to $250 / day.  

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 
95 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
F2 

 
8 

The Respondent respectfully requests the 
removal of  this SLA.  The f inancial consequence 
could far exceed most credits and the 
Respondent’s standard business practice it to 
apply credits within two (2) billing cycles. 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 
96 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
G1 

 
9 

Please conf irm the fees cited as previous in the 
following Performance Metric should be for the 
current quarter:  
“An electronic Cost Recovery Payment will be 
provided within forty-f ive (45) days af ter the end 
of  the calendar quarter to cover the fees collected 
for the previous quarter, in accordance with SOW 
subsection 6.2” 

This is correctly stated in Attachment C, SLA-G1.  
 
For example, the Cost Recovery Payment for the 
calendar quarter January through March is due by 
May 15th, which is within forty-f ive (45) days af ter the 
end of  the calendar quarter. 

 
97 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
G2 

 
9 

The Respondent respectfully requests the 
following change to this requirement: 
A Direct-Billed Accounts Monthly Report will be 
provided no later than the 30th 15th of  the month 
on all direct-billed accounts, in accordance with 
SOW subsection 6.4 

Please see Section 14 of  Addendum No. 2. 
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Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
G2 

 
9 

Respondent respectfully requests reducing the 
f inancial consequence f rom $1000 / day for 
delayed invoices to $250 / day. 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 
99 
 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
G3 

 
9 

The Respondent respectfully requests the 
following change to this requirement: 
A Direct-Billed Accounts Quarterly Report will be 
provided no later than the 30th 15th of  the month 
on all direct-billed accounts, in accordance with 
SOW subsection 6.5 

Please see Section 14 of  Addendum No. 2  
 

 
100 

 

Attachment C – 
Service Level 

Agreements, SLA-
G3 

 
9 

Respondent respectfully requests reducing the 
f inancial consequence f rom $1000 / day for 
delayed invoices to $250 / day. 

See ITN section 4.4, Negotiations, 
 
However, no modif ications are guaranteed, and  
Replies must be submitted as if  the current Contract 
terms apply. 
 

 


